
January 13, 2014 Page 1 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

CITY OF PHOENIX
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
FOR REGULAR MEETING - MONDAY, January 13, 2014

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/INTRODUCTION: Chair Summerhays called
the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Assistant Planner
Roennfeldt called roll call. In attendance were Chair Micki Summerhays, Vice
Chair David Lewin, and Commissioners George “Ike” Eisenhauer and Judy Grillo.
There was a quorum. Staff in attendance was Interim Planning Director Laurel
Samson and Assistant Planner Steffen Roennfeldt.

II. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA: Chair Summerhays said since six different sets of
minutes need our approval, she will move that item to the end of the agenda
and hear new business first.

III. ELECTON OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR: For the position of Chair, moved by
Commissioner Lewin, and seconded by Commissioner Eisenhauer, a motion to
nominate Ms. Summerhays Chair of the Planning Commission.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

THE MOTION WAS UNANIMOUSLY PASSED.

For the position of Vice-Chair, moved by Commissioner Eisenhauer, and
seconded by Commissioner Grillo, a motion to nominate Commissioner Lewin
Vice-Chair of the Planning Commission.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

THE MOTION WAS UNANIMOUSLY PASSED.

IV. NEW BUSINESS:
A. Site Design Review for “City on a Hill” – New Church Building at

150 South Main Street – File Number SP13-01



January 13, 2014 Page 2 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

Chair Summerhays turned the meeting over to Assistant Planner Roennfeldt, who
gave a comprehensive Power Point presentation that highlighted the Staff Report
which was included in the Commissioners’ packet.

Public Hearing:
Chair Summerhays opened the public hearing and asked if there were any
conflicts of interest, ex parte contact or specific bias. There were none.

Mr. Ray Kistler and Mr. Mark Dew, who are both employed by KSW Architects,
552 “A” Street, Ashland Oregon, represented the applicant for Faith Tabernacle.
Their Project Narrative was included in the Commissioners’ packet. They
explained various points of this narrative and referred to a number of drawings
of the buildings. Mr. Kistler said he wanted to answer concerns regarding a
sidewalk between the public sidewalk and the parking lot. He said the
mechanical system and landscaping will be in that area. On the north side of the
parking lot is the detention and treatment bioswell and the ingress/egress. He
said they can install a sidewalk if necessary. Neither Chair Summerhays nor Ms.
Samson knew if the sidewalk is required, and they are checking on that. Mr.
Kistler said there is access to the building, just not down the driveway.
Commissioner Lewin asked when the second phase would be built. Mr. Kistler
said their goal is within three years, but that is not certain. Ms. Samson said
when the three years have passed, the site plan would need to be revised,
resubmitted and approved.

Chair Summerhays asked the Commission if they had questions at this time. No
one did.

Mr. Josh Marotti, 74 West Glenwood, Medford, Oregon, said he is very much in
favor of this project coming to Phoenix.

Mr. Sherman Peters, 4576 South Pacific Highway, Phoenix, Oregon is a member
of Faith Tabernacle and said the Commission should approve this project
because it will beautify that section of Phoenix.

Mr. Nick Welsh, 1000 Megan Lane, Phoenix, Oregon, said he is speaking on
behalf of himself and his family. He attends this church and heartily approves of
this project.

Ms. Samson said she wanted to review the sidewalk section. Specifically, the site
review states that “pathways shall connect all building entrances to one
another.” No specific width is mentioned. Chair Summerhays said the pathway
could be gravel.



January 13, 2014 Page 3 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

Applicant Pastor Curtis Wine, 895 Neil Creek, Ashland Oregon, said he just wants
a building and will leave the design, color, etc., to the architects. The sidewalk in
discussion happens to have been included on one of several plans he drew. He
said he is very excited about eventually being in Phoenix.

Hearing no other request from the public to speak, Chair Summerhays closed the
Public Comment section.

COMMISSIONERS DELIBERATION:
Ms. Samson suggested the word “walkway” be changed to “pathway” in Exhibit
“A” – Conditions of Approval. When asked if Mr. Roennfeldt had added a walking
path along the driveway to the drawings, Ms. Samson said the Planning
Department does not amend the submitted drawings. Commissioner Lewin said
on page 7, #17, he sees in the Staff Report and Recommendations the sentence
“staff recommends the vision clearance triangle to be decreased to 15 feet on the
south side of the driveway due to South Main Street being a one-way street.” But
he does not see this in the Conditions of Approval and thinks it should be added.

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER GRILLO, AND SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER EISENHAUER, TO APPROVE THE CONDITIONS OF
APPROVAL FOR “CITY ON A HILL” – NEW CHURCH BUILDING AT 150
SOUTH MAIN STREET – FILE NUMBER SP13-01, WITH THE FOLLOWING
AMENDMENTS TO EXHIBIT “A,” ITEM #5: CHANGE “WALKWAY” TO
“PATHWAY”; AND ADD #13: THE VISION CLEARANCE TRIANGLE IS TO
BE DECREASED TO 15 FEET ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF THE DRIVEWAY
DUE TO SOUTH MAIN STREET BEING A ONE-WAY STREET.”

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

THE MOTION WAS UNANIMOUSLY PASSED.

V. OLD BUSINESS:
A. Adopted Street Naming Regulations
Ms. Samson said this information is offered to the Planning Commission so they
can see City Council’s changes. Streets that are on the other side of the freeway
will not use the “north” or “south” designation. Emergency Services did not
disagree with this decision.

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
A. December 10, 2012



January 13, 2014 Page 4 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

B. August 27, 2012
C. July 22, 2013
D. October 14, 2013
E. November 25, 2013
F. February 13, 2012

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER LEWIN, AND SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER GRILLO FOR THE MEETINGS SHE ATTENDED AND
CHAIR SUMMERHAYS FOR ANY MEETINGS COMMISSIONER GRILLO
WAS ABSENT FOR, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 10, 2012,
AUGUST 27, 2012, JULY 22, 2013, OCTOBER 14, 2013, NOVEMBER 25,
2013, AND FEBRUARY 13, 2012 WITH THE FOLLOWING CORRECTIONS:
JULY 22, 2013 MINUTES, PAGE 4 “EISENHAUER” IS MISSPELLED; AND
FEBRUARY 13, 2012, PAGE 2, PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT, ITEM A:
CHANGE “GREATER BEAR CREEK VALLEY REGIONAL PLANNING
COMMISSION” TO “GREATER BEAR CREEK VALLEY REGIONAL
PROBLEM SOLVING.”

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

THE MOTION WAS UNANIMOUSLY PASSED.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENTS: NONE

VIII. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS
Commissioner Lewin asked if the Mayor’s newsletter could routinely publicize
vacancies on the Planning Commission. He also suggested having the vacancies
noted in the Chamber of Commerce newsletter. Ms. Samson said the vacancies
will be posted on the City website.

Chair Summerhays welcomed Ms. Samson to the City and thanked her for
serving.

IX. PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT:

Ms. Samson distributed the list that former Planning Director Schulze was
working on. She has made some additions. Some are just “typos” in the Land
Development Code. Some are more complicated. She said we can work on the



January 13, 2014 Page 5 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

items that need more explanation or clearer definitions. Perhaps sometime
before this Commission meets again, the Commission could be looking at the
other items, such as policy change amendments. We need the Planning
Commission to tell us what their priorities are; it will take a good amount of time
to go through this entire list. Signs and home owners’ yards are important to
them. She asked for direction as to where they should begin. She said we’re
going to work on the easy amendments first and bring those before the Planning
Commission. The Commission can then decide if they want these in the code or
just drop them.

Commissioner Lewin said if it looks as though we don’t have enough items to
have a regular meeting in the near future, perhaps we could instead have a
workshop to go through some of this. He is confident that Ms. Samson has a
sense of what should be worked on first. He wants her to create an agenda for
the first workshop.

Chair Summerhays and Commissioner Lewin voiced concerns about the state of
RPS modifying our City Comprehensive Plan without any public hearings. Chair
Summerhays was concerned about how our 50-year Plan actually gets adopted
into our code. Ms. Samson will research these issue and report back.

Ms. Samson reported that she meets every month with planners from Jackson
County for RPS. She was told the first city to move Urban Reserve Areas into
their Urban Growth Boundary is Central Point.

Ms. Samson wanted to thank Commissioner Lewin for agreeing to be the liaison
for the new transportation system plan committee. Citizens will also be
members. They already have a consultant on board and a technical board. They
are planning several open houses to disperse information. Ms. Samson asked the
Commission if open houses would be better, or she said some cities have set up
a table with handouts and someone to answer questions where people are
already gathered. Examples are Ray’s market or the library. Chair Summerhays
said an open house is best. She said they’ve had success at the school.
Commissioner Lewin suggested putting information in a publication ODOT
distributes called “Moving On.” Other possibilities are the Mayor’s newsletter or
the City website. Ms. Samson also asked if information could be added in the
utility bills that are regularly mailed. Commissioner Grillo recalls receiving a letter
attached to her bill regarding some City issue in the past.

3955 Colver Road: Chair Summerhays wanted to discuss a 2004 lot line
adjustment in the form of a Conditional Use Permit request the Planning
Commission denied. The applicants took the matter to City Council. The Planning
Commission’s decision was overridden, Council approved the request, and a flag



January 13, 2014 Page 6 of 6
Planning Commission Minutes

lot was created as a result. The existing carport was now several feet on the lot’s
new property line. If the carport were removed, then the original lot would have
no garage and become non-compliant. Ms. Samson said two years later, a lot
line adjustment was approved that moved the lot line even closer to the existing
house. As a result of that action, over half of the carport is now on the flag lot.
Mr. Roennfeldt said the whole issue has been revived because the lot is for sale
and a potential buyer has visited the Planning counter several times asking
numerous questions.

Mr. Roennfeldt reported that the old Dutch Brothers coffee stand has been
demolished and the Planning Department is ready to issue building permits for
the new Dutch Brothers.

X. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Summerhays adjourned the meeting at 7:50 p.m.

Micki Chair Summerhays, Chair Laurel Samson,
Interim Planning Director


